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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Directors have pleasure to present this report and audited financial statements for year ended 31
December 2017, which disclose the state of affairs of Azania Bank Limited (“the bank™). These financial
statements can be amended by the Board of Directors and regulatory bodies if found to be misleading after
they have been issued to the public. These financial statements for the vear ended 3 1* December 2017
were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 28" March 2018.

I. INCORPORATION

The bank is incorporated in Tanzania under the Tanzanian Companies Act, 2002 as a limited liability
Company whose shares are not publicly traded. The Bank is licensed by Bank of Tanzania under the
Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006.

2. VISION

The vision of Azania Bank Limited is ‘To be a One Stop Financial Centre’.

3. MISSION

The mission of Azania Bank Limited is: ‘A customer centred bank of choice availing freedom of access
to a range of quality financial products and services while enhancing shareholders value using
appropriate technology, competent and dedicated staff *.

4. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Azania Bank Limited is the provision of banking and related services
stipulated by the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006. There has been no significant change
in the principal activities of the bank during the financial year ended 31 December 2017.

5. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Azania Bank Limited has a board comprising of nine Non-Executive Directors and one Executive
Director. The Board chairman and five Non-Executive members of the Board represent Institutional
shareholders, two are Independent directors while one director represents the minority shareholders.
The Board meets at least four times a year. The Board delegates the day-to-day management of the
business to the Managing Director assisted by senior management team. Senior management facilitates
the effective control of the bank s operational activities, acting as a medium of communication between
different business units.

All directors and employees adhere to the principles of the Code of Conduct in all their dealings on
behalf of the bank. The Code of Conduct sets a standard in a manner that actions of directors and
employees are in the best interest of the Bank and reflect the commitment to maintain highest standards
of integrity, ethical behaviour and compliance with all applicable internal and external laws and
regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board held four (4) ordinary meetings and seven (7)
extraordinary meetings,

The Bank is committed to the principles of effective corporate governance. The directors also recognise
the importance of integrity, transparency and accountability. The Board of Directors has four sub-
committees which ensure high standard of corporate governance throughout the Bank.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to the principles of good corporate governance and recognize the importance
of integrity, competency, responsibility, fairness, transparency and accountability as well as the need
to conduct the business in accordance with the generally accepted best business practices. In so doing
the Directors therefore confirm that:

® The Board of Directors met regularly throughout the year;
* They retain full and effective control over the Bank and monitor executive management;
e The positions of Chairman and Managing Director are held by different people;
e The Chairman of the Board of Directors is non-executive:
e The Board accepts and exercises responsibility for strategic and policy decisions, the approval of
budgets and monitoring of the institution performance:
* The Board is not involved in day to day operations of the Bank the task which is vested to
management team under Managing Director
The Board has formed Committees which act on behalf of the Board in specific areas to direct the Bank
effectively and accelerate the decision-making process.

Board Audit Committee

The main responsibilities of the Committee are to review financial information and monitor the
effectiveness of management information and internal control systems. In addition, the Committee
deliberates on the significant findings arising from internal and external audit and review findings by
the Banking Supervision Directorate of the Bank of Tanzania. There is no member from the committee
who resigned during the year. The Committee meets at least four times a year.

Members of the Committee, who served during the year, were as follows:

Name Position Qualifications
Mr Eliudi B. Sanga Chairman M.A Economics
Mr Arnold B. Kilewo Member LLB,AMP

Mr. Julius KAM Mganga Member MSC, ADA

Mr. Alphonce Tikyeba Member CPA(T)

Mr, Rashid K. Mchatta Member MSc.

Mr. Felix M. Maagi Member MBA, CPA(T)

The committee met four times in a year.
Board Credit Committee

The Committee is responsible for the review of the bank’s overall lending policy. conducting

independent loan reviews. review of lending limits and is responsible for the overall management of
credit risk.

Members of the Credit Committee, who served during the year, were as follows:

Name Position Date resigned | Qualifications
Mrs Juliana M., Sweke Chairperson | May, 2017 MBA. CPA(T)
Mr Aboud H. Mwinyi Member June, 2017 MSc

Mrs Assumpta N. Mallya Chairperson MBA

Mr. Luseshelo Njeje Member MBA

The committee met four times in a year.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)
Board Risk Management and Compliance Committee
The Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its primary responsibilities by establishing and
implementing the Risk Management framework of the Bank. The Risk Management framework
focuses on risk management process entailing risk identification, evaluation, measurement and
monitoring.

The committee met four (4) times during the year to discuss risk and compliance reports.

Members of the Committee, who served during the year, were as follows:

Name Position Date resigned Qualifications
Mrs Juliana M. Sweke Chairman May, 2017 MBA, CPA(T)
Mr Aboud H. Mwinyi Member June. 2017 MSc

Mrs. Assumpta N. Mallya Chairperson MBA

Mr. Luseshelo Njeje Member MBA

Board Human Resources Committee

The Committee deals with all matters pertaining to employees’ welfare including recruitment and
remuneration. The committee met four (4) times during the year to discuss Human Resource matters
and reports. There is no member from the committee who resigned during the year.

Members of the Human Resources Committee, who served during the year, were as follows:

Name Position Qualifications
Mr Eliudi B. Sanga Chairman M.A Economics
Mr Arnold B. Kilewo Member LLB,AMP

Mr Julius KAM. Mganga Member MSC, ADA

Mr. Alphonce Tikyeba Member CPA(T)

7. REMUNATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Directors fee together with any other payments to the Board members is usually approved by the
Annual General Meeting. During the year under review, the Directors fees paid to Board members was
TZS 70 million (2016: TZS 54 million). Other expenses incurred by the Board together with
management compensation are disclosed on note 41 - Related party disclosures.

8. DIRECTORS’ INTEREST

Mr Arold B. Kilewo has interest in the share capital of the bank forming part of the minority
shareholding. He holds 0.04% of the ordinary share capital.

9. MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

The Board of Directors is entrusted with supervision of the bank and the day-to-day management is
under the Managing Director who is assisted by Directors and Head of independent unit. As of 31st
December 2017, organisational structure of the Bank comprised of the following independent
departments/units:
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

9. MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (Continued)

Departments
e Business Development
¢ Treasury and Capital Market
Credit
Finance and Planning
Legal services
Operations
Information and Communication Technology
* Internal Audit
* Risk Management and compliance

® @ o o

Managing Director reports to the Board of Directors and in turn all Directors reports to the Managing
Director except the Director Internal Auditor who functional ly reports to the Board Audit Committee and
administratively to the Managing Director. During the year the Bank made transformation in terms of
organizational structure with focus on performance improvement aiming to aligning the bank towards
achieving its strategic objectives. During the year under review three new departments; Credit department,
Information and Communication Technology department as well as Treasury and Capital Market
department were formed with aim of improving bank business services, efficiencies and productivity.

10. SHARE HOLDERS AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2017, the following shareholders held shares in Azania Bank Limited:

10.1 Ordinary Shares

—
Percentage

Name of shareholder Number of shares held Shareholding
National Social Security Fund (NSSF) 21,383,262 35.86
PPF Pensions Fund (PPF) 18,512,512 31.05
Public Service Pension Fund (PSPF) 8.890,188 14.91]
LAPF Pension Fund (LAPF) 9,304,282 15.60
East African Development Bank (EADB) 931.812 1.56
Minority shareholders (less than 1% each) 607,899 1.02
Total 59,629,954 100

During the year ended 31st December 2017, the Bank received TZS 26,218,500.000 being a fresh
capital injection from four major shareholders. The National Social Security Fund (NSSF) injected
TZS 10,840,500,000, the PPF Pension Fund (PPF) injected TZS 9,378,000,000, Public Services
Pension Fund (PSPF) injected TZS 4,000.000,000 and the LAPF Pension Fund (LAPF) injected TZS
2.000,000,000 (December 2016: TZS 3.000,000,000). The capital injection is an implementation of the
resolution of the Annual General meeting held on July 2016 where shareholders committed to inject
178 30,000 million as additional capital.

Furthermore, during the year 6,745,860 shares under share premium were allocated ordinary share
capital.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

10. SHARE CAPITAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

10.2 Preference Shares (Non-cum ulative)

Number of
Name of shareholder shares held Percentage
shareholding
National Social Security Fund (NSSF) 55,555 80
PPF Pension Fund (PPF) 13,889 20
69,444 100.

Shareholders of these preference shares are entitled to dividend and are given first priority over
holders of ordinary shares when dividend is declared and paid. These preference shares do not
accumulate dividend for the year the bank has not declared or paid dividend. Shareholders receive
dividend only when declared and paid.

10.3 Convertible Loan Stock

| Name of loan stockholder TZS 000
Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF) 2,000,000

The loan stock was issued for the purpose of raising finance to develop the operation of Azania Bank
Limited and can be converted into shares at nominal value. The Bank secured a loan stock from
Government Employees Fund on 19 November 2014 for the period of five years at a rate of 16.75%

per annum. The loan is subordinated and the lender has an option to convert the loan into ordinary
shares on maturity.

11. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the accounts are set on Note 6 to the financial
statements and they are in line with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

12. PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR

The Bank’s results are set out on page 21-24 of the financial statements. The comparative is based on
the 2016 restated financial results. During the year under review, the Bank recorded a net profit of TZS
1,808 million (2016: A loss of TZS 6.039 million). The Bank performance improvement was mainly
attributed to the additional investments on loans and advances, Government securities and interbank
placements that led to growth of interest income., Furthermore, containment of costs of funding led to
decrease in interest expenses hence improved interest margin.

The interest income for the year ended 31 December 2017 increased by 6.1% to close at TZS 41,901
million (2016: TZS 39,513 million). The increase was mainly attributable to growth on interest income
from held to maturity (government securities) investments of TZS 9,100 million (2016: TZS 5,731
million) and interbank placements which was TZS 2.859 (TZS 1.727 million). The improvement was
aresult of increased in short term investments volumes as yields continued to decrease during the year.

On the other hand, interest expenses decreased by 8.5% in 2017 to TZS 16,845 million (2016: TZS

18,413 million) mainly due to deliberate action of negotiating lower on interest rates on deposits taking
advantage of downward trend of market interest rates.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

12. PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Non-interest income during the year increased to TZS 8.213 million, an increase of 8.4% as compared
to TZS 7.576 million recorded in preceding year. The increase is notable on foreign exchange income
which closed at TZS 1,539 million, recording an increase by 151.2% when compared to TZS 613
million for year 2016. The increase was a result of volatility in foreign exchange market that created
business opportunities on both transactional and position.

Fees and commissions rose slightly by 4% to TZS 6.622 million (2016: TZS 6,370 million) whereas
other income decreased significantly by 91.2% to TZS 52 million (2016: TZS 594 million). The
decrease in other income resulted from lower recovery from charged off loan facilities.

Operating expenses increased by 10% to TZS 30,443 million (2016: TZS 28.020 million). Notable
increases are on personnel costs by 12.5% due to recruitments made by the bank during the year where
number of staff increased from 276 in 2016 to 293; premises costs grew by 12.4%, equipment
maintenance costs by 10.3%, general and administrative costs increased by 2.3% while depreciation
expenses recorded an increase by 21.6% due to realignment of amortization expenses of core banking

system which had amortization write-back (credit) in year 2016 as was amortized in excess in year
2015.

13. FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017 total assets were TZS  390.009 million (2016: 338,827 million) showing a
growth of 15%. The increase in total assets is notable on investments in held to maturity (government
securities) investments to TZS 77,615 million (2016: 48,748 million) signifying 59.2% growth as well
as loans and advances which grew to TZS 186,703 million (2016: TZS 169,327 million) signifying
10.3% growth.

Customer deposits increased by 14.8% to TZS 271.370 (2016: TZS 236,380 million). The increase was
attributed to growth in corporate business leading to increase in current accounts by 106% and increase
in saving accounts by 6%.

The shareholders’ fund increased by 91.1% to TZS 57,881 million (2016: TZS 30,058 million). Such
growth of equity was driven by TZS 26.219 million being capital injection from shareholders as well
as profit made during the period. During the year the bank recorded a net profit of TZS 1,808 million
(2016: net loss of TZS 6,039 million. The core capital and total capital ratios as at 31 December 2017
stood at 19.95% and 21.60% respectively (2016: 9.16% and 10.88% respectively). The minimum
regulatory requirement for core capital and total capital ratios is 10.0% % and 12.0% respectively.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

14. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

RESTATE

Indicator Definition and Formula 2017 D2016 2016
Return on Equity Net Profit/Average Total Equity 34% (18.85)% (102)%
Return on Assets Profit Before Tax/Average Total Assets — 0.41%  (1.72)%  (1.0)%

'Non-lnleresl [ncomé/( Interest + non-

Non-interest income to Gross income .
interest [ncome)

16.39% 1609% 15%

Interest Expense to Interest Income Interest Expense/Interest Income 40.20% 46.60% 42%

mﬁi)eratingr Expenses/(interest + non-
interest income) o
Non-interest expenses (including

Operating expenses to gross income

60.93%  58.96% 90%

Non-interest expense to gross income provisions)/(Interest + non-interest 61.62% 77.35% 54%
income) } it 20
Non-performing loans to total advances  Non-Performing Loans / Gross Loans 12.29% 13.1% 13.1%
Loans to total assets Nu Loans/Total Assets 48.0% 50% 51%

(Current —prev. year net loans)/prev.
year Net Loans e
(Current —prev. year Total Assets)/prev.
vear Total Assets

; i Core Capital/Risk Wélghtcd Assets e o = i
Tier | Capital (incl, Off B. sheet) 19.33% : 824A1 t 905%) 4

Growth of Loans and Advances

103% (13.5)% (10.0)%

Growth of Assets

15.02% 3.41% 3.41%

15. CASHFLOW AND LIQUIDITY MANAGEMENT

During the year under review the investments of the Bank were financed by shareholders capital as
well as deposits from public. The Bank received fresh equity of TZS 26,219 million from institutions
shareholders as implied in section 10 of this directors™ report. Furthermore, the Bank mobilized
deposits amounting TZS 22,201 million from the public which were used for investment in various
business avenues. Operations of the Bank were financed by proceeds collected from business
investments. The cash flows of the Bank was stable to continue supporting business operations and
additional investments. Liquidity management of the Bank is of high importance more details on
liquidity risk management are given in note 43.

16. FUTURE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

Following transformation and capitalization during the year the Bank has redefined accordingly to
support the Government agenda of transforming the nation to industry economy by 2025. The bank has

devolved five year strategic plan in line with the National Five Year Development Plan 2016/17-
2020/21.

The Bank is focusing on promoting financial inclusion by offering financial services to the market
cutting across from retail to corporate clients. As pioneer of mortgage business the Bank also remain
determined to offer these products in an affordable manner. The Bank will make investments to upgrade
its core banking system and other peripheral systems to improve efficiency in service delivery.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

17. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board accepts final responsibility for the risk management and internal control systems of the
bank. It is the task of the management to ensure that adequate internal financial and operational control
systems are developed and maintained on an on-going basis in order to provide reasonable assurance
regarding:

* The effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

¢ The safeguarding of the bank’s assets:

» Compliance with applicable laws and regulations:

* The reliability of the accounting records;

e Business continuity under normal as well as adverse conditions; and
e Responsible behaviours towards all stakeholders.

The efficiency of any internal control system is dependent on the strict observance of the prescribed
measures. There is always a risk of non-compliance of such measures by staff. Whilst no system, of
internal control can provide absolute assurance against misstatement or losses. the Bank’s system is
designed to provide the Board with reasonable assurance that the procedures in place are operating
effectively.

The Board assessed the internal control systems throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2017
and is of the opinion that they meet accepted criteria.

The Board carries risk and internal control assessment through the Audit and Risk committees.
18. SERIOUS JUDICIAL MATTER
As at the end of the reporting period the Bank did not have any uncertain issue warranting reporting.
19. SOLVENCY
The Board of Directors confirms that applicable accounting standards have been followed and that the
financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis. The Board has reasonable expectation
that the Bank has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
20. EMPLOYEE WELFARE
Management and Employees’ Relationship
There were continuous good relations between employees and management for year ended 31
December 2017. There were no unresolved complaints received by the management from employees
during the year.
The Bank is an equal opportunity employer
The Bank is equal opportunity employer. It gives equal access to employment and ensures that the best
available person is appointed to any given position free from discrimination of any kind and without

regard to factors like gender, marital status, tribes, religion and disability which does not impair ability
to discharge duties.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

20. EMPLOYEE WELFARE (CONTINUED)
Staff training

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Bank spent TZS 199 million (2016: TZS 105 million)
for staff training. To show the commitment to improve staff performance the Bank has budgeted sum
of TZS 700 million for the year 2018 that will be utilized to train staff in order to improve employees’
competencies and technical skills. Training programs have been and are continually being developed
to ensure employees are adequately trained at all levels.

Medical facilities

All members of staff and up to maximum number of four beneficiaries (dependants) for each employee
have medical insurance guaranteed by the Bank. Currently, these services are provided by AAR
Insurance (T) Ltd.

Financial assistance to staff

Loans are available to all confirmed employees depending on the assessment of and the discretion of
the management as to the need and circumstances. Loans provided to staff include mortgage finance,
personal, car loans, and salary advances.

Employees benefit plan

The Bank pays contributions to publicly administered pension plans on mandatory basis which
qualifies to be a defined contribution plan. The Bank obligations in respect of these contributions are
limited to 15% of the employees” monthly basic salaries.

Workers compensation fund

This is a social security scheme established by the Government responsible for compensating workers
who suffer occupational injuries or contract occupational diseases arising out of and in the course of
their employment. Under this arrangement, the bank contributes to the fund 1% of the monthly wage
bill it has paid to its staff for which all the dues were settled by end of December 2017.

Gender parity

The Bank is an equal opportunity employer. It gives equal access to employment opportunities and
ensures that the best available person is appointed to any given position free from discrimination of
any kind.

As at 31 December 2017 the Bank had the following distribution of employees by gender.

Gender 2017 2016
Male — , T o
Female 142130
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions and balances as at 31st December 2017 are disclosed in Note 41 to the
financial statements.

22. POLITICAL AND CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Bank did not make any political donations during the year. However, charitable donations
amounting to TZS 37 million (2016: TZS 51 million) were made to various charitable organisations as
part of the Bank’s Corporate Social Responsibility activities.

23. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Bank has been engaging in various activities to improve wellbeing of the society in which it
operates. This activity demonstrates the Bank’s commitments to serve the society by ensuring that the
community in which the Bank operates benefits with its presence.

During the year under review the Bank sponsored Tanzanian youths to attend students’ festival in
Russia by TZS 18 million. Furthermore, the Bank donated TZS 1.5 million to KCMC during cancer
week. The Bank has set aside fund to continue participating in social activities with aim of i improving
wellbeing of community in which it is operating.

24. AUDITORS
During the year, Emst and Young were appointed as auditor of the Bank, and have expressed their
willingness to continue in office and are eligible for re-appointment. A resolution proposing the re-

appointment of the external auditors of the Bank for the financial year 2018 will be put to the Annual
General Meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

/ 27 mﬁ'RCH 2018

" Prof. Godius Kahyarara

29 el
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Companies Act, 2002 requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial
year that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Bank as at the end of the financial
year and of its profit or loss. It also requires the directors to ensure that the Bank keeps proper
accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Bank. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank.

The Directors accept responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. The financial statements have
been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
Jjudgements and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2002. The Directors are of the opinion that the financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the state of the financial affairs of the Bank and of
its financial results in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania.

The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be
relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement. To enable the Directors to meet these responsibilities they
set standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner.
The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework,
effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of
risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Bank and all employees are required to maintain
the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Bank’s business is conducted in a manner that in all
reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Bank is on
identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known risks across the Bank. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Bank endeavours to minimise it by ensuring the appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management
that the system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be
relied on for the preparation of the financial statements. However, any system of internal financial
control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Bank will not remain a going
concern for at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements of Azania Bank Limited, as identified in the first paragraph, were approved

e

Prof. Godius Kahyarara
Board chairman
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

DECLARATION OF THE HEAD OF FINANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The National Board of Accountants and Auditors (NBAA) according to the power conferred under the
Auditors and Accountants (Registration) Act. No. 33 of 1972, as amended by Act No. 2 of 1995,
requires financial statements to be accompanied with a declaration issued by the Head of
Finance/Accounting responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the entity concerned.

It is the duty of a Professional Accountant to assist the Board of Directors/Governing
Body/Management to discharge the responsibility of preparing financial statements of an entity showing
true and fair view of the entity position and performance in accordance with applicable International
Accounting Standards and statutory financial reporting requirements. Full legal responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements rests with the Board of Directors/Governing Body as under Directors
Responsibility statement on an earlier page.

I Togolani E. Mramba being the Director of Finance of Azania Bank Limited hereby acknowledge
my responsibility of ensuring that financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 ,shave
been prepared in compliance with applicable accounting standards and statutory requirements.

[ thus confirm that the financial statements of Azania Bank Limited comply with applicable accounting

standards and statutory requirements as on that date and that they have been prepared based on properly
maintained financial records.

Signed by: <:&'w-qrd>q ..............................

Position: Director of Finance and Planning
NBAA Membership No.: ACPA 964

Date: 2q ......................... March 2018
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Dar es Salaam, Tanzania

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholders of Azania Bank Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Azania Bank Limited (the Bank) set out on pages 21
to 84, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 201 7, and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial
Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Tanzania, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Jjudgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provided the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholders of Azania Bank Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Azania Bank Limited (the Bank) set out on pages 21
to 84, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 201 7, and the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 201 7, and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial
Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Tanzania, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provided the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
to the shareholders of Azania Bank Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

No.

Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

1.

Credit risk and impairment of loans and advances to customers

Impairment is a subjective area due to the
level  of judgment applied by
management in determining provisions.

The Bank is required to calculate
impairment of loans and advances to
customers in accordance with both the
Bank of Tanzania regulations and IFRSs.

We focused on the identification of
impairment events, which differs based
upon the type of lending product and

customer. Judgment is required to
determine whether a loss has been
incurred.

We also focused on the measurement of
impairment, including the assessment of
whether  historical  experience s
appropriatt  when  assessing  the
likelihood of incurred losses in respect to
loans.

Judgement is applied in determining the
appropriate parameters and assumptions
used to calculate impairment. For
example, the assumption of customers
that will default, the valuation of
collateral for secured lending and the
estimated future cash flows of loans.

We also considered the disclosures on
credit risk and impairment included in
notes 6(g) and 22 to be important to the
users’ understanding of the financial
statements.

Our audit procedures included the assessment of key
controls over the approval, recording and monitoring of
loans and advances.

We evaluated the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used by the Bank in calculating
collectively assessed impairment losses, and on sample
basis, assessed the adequacy of impairment allowances
for individually assessed loans and advances for both
IFRS and Bank of Tanzania impairment allowances.

We compared the Bank's assumptions for impairment
allowances to externally available industry, financial
and economic data and our own assessments in relation
to key inputs. As part of this, we assessed the Bank's
estimates and assumptions used including the
consistency of judgement applied in the determination
of the amount and timing of expected future cash flows,
and consideration of economic factors and historical
default rates.

On sample basis, we evaluated whether the Bank's
assumptions on the realizable value of collateral, was
based on up to date valuations and available market
information.

We evaluated whether the Bank’s computations for the
regulatory impairment allowances were based on the
Bank of Tanzania regulations. This included assessing
whether the classification of loans and the percentages
applied were in accordance with the Bank of Tanzania
regulations.

We also assessed whether the financial statements
disclosures in Notes 43 appropriately reflect the Bank's
exposure to credit risk.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

to the

shareholders of

Azania Bank Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

—

2.

Compliance with tax and bankin

laws and regulations

Operating in the banking sector
presents increased regulatory risks
due to the need to comply with
multiple regulatory and legislative
requirements, including legislation
relating to banking and tax.

We focused on compliance with
tax and banking laws and
regulations because breaches of
compliance  could have a
significant effect on the results and
financial position of the Bank.

Tax  focus areas included
compliance with changes in tax
laws effective during the year and
the financial reporting implication
of open tax assessments.

Assessing the likely outcome and
quantification of tax exposures
was one of the judgmental areas
our audit was focused on.

Bank of Tanzania regulations
require external auditors of banks
to specifically report on the Bank’s
capital adequacy and this was a
key focus area in relation to
compliance with banking laws and
regulations.

We also considered the risk that
the income tax disclosures in Note
18 and Note 26 and the capital
adequacy disclosures in Note 40 to
the financial statements are not
complete, as they are significant to
the understanding of the Bank’s
income tax position and capital
management.

Our audit procedures included:

* Assessing of key controls over the identification, evaluation and
measurement of potential obligations arising from legal and
regulatory matters.

e Involving our tax specialists where appropriate to analyse the
assumptions used to determine provisions for tax matters based on
their knowledge and experience of local regulations and practices.

* Inspecting reports on open tax assessments done by the Bank’s tax
consultants and in-house legal counsel and where appropriate, the
Bank's external legal advisers, and appropriate documentation
considered necessary to understand the position and conclusions
made by the Bank. We also obtained external confirmations from
legal counsel on significant litigation.

¢ Considering the exposure to breaches of legislation by making
appropriate enquiry of the Bank’s management in relation to
compliance with laws and regulations and the existence and status
of any significant regulatory and legal matters.

e Inspecting correspondence with tax authorities and the central
bank, central bank audit and inspection reports from the central
bank and the tax authority and compliance logs to identify actual
and potential noncompliance with laws and regulations that could
materially affect the Bank’s financial statements,

* Evaluating whether the capital adequacy ratios of the Bank
disclosed in Note 40 to the financial statements were computed in
accordance with the Bank of Tanzania regulations.

* Where significant matters were identified, we considered whether
an obligation exists, the appropriateness of provisioning and/or
disclosure based on the facts and circumstances available.

* Using our experience of local practices we assessed the Jjudgements
made by the Bank in arriving at any potential provisions and
contingencies relating to compliance with tax and banking laws and
regulations.

* Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy of the Bank’s disclosures
in Note 18 and 26 in respect of income tax.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
fo the shareholders of Azania Bank Limited

Other Information included in the Bank’s 2017 Director’s Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Directors” Report, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact, and we have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2002 and the Banking and Financial Institutions Act, 2006 of Tanzania, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
to the shareholders of Azania Bank Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so

would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for, and only for, the Bank's members as a
body in accordance with the Companies Act, 2002 of Tanzania and for no other purposes.

As required by the Companies Act, 2002 of Tanzania, we report to you, based on our audit, that;

*  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

* Inouropinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Bank, so far as appears from
our examination of those books;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
to the shareholders of

Azania Bank Limited
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements (Continued)
* The Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements;

* Information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions with the
Bank is disclosed; and

* The Bank’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are in agreement with the books of account.

As required by the Banking and Financial Institutions (External Auditors) Regulations, 2015 of
Tanzania, we report to you, based on our audit, that;

* In our opinion, the capital adequacy ratios as presented in Note 40 to the financial
statements have been computed in accordance with the Banking and Financial Institutions
Act, 2006, and the Banking and Financial Institutions (Capital Adequacy) Regulations,
2015 of Tanzania.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Neema Kiure-
Mssusa.

& TB%»L L ﬁj

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Dar es Salaam

Signed by: Neema Kiure Mssusa (Partner)

)
Date: = \Q‘J ( 2018
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Impairment charge on loans and advance
Net interest after impairment charge
Fees and commissions income

Foreign exchange income

Other income

Total non-interest income

Personnel expenses

Premises maintenance costs
Equipment maintenance costs
Depreciation and amortization

General and administrative expenses

Profit / (loss) before tax

Income tax expense/(credit)

Net profit /( loss) for the year
Re-measurements of defined benefit liability

Gain on fair value of available for sale assets
Tax thereon

Net other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive profit (loss) for the year

The accounting policies and Notes on pages 25 to 84 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with. these

financial statements.

NOTES

10
11
12

13
14
15
16
17

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2016 fi

made, refer to Note 22 for details.

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
RESTATED*
41,900,918 39,513,094
(16.845.381) (18,413,394)
25,055,537 21,099,700
(344.180) (8.654.693)
24,711,357 12,445,007
6.622.078 6,369,563
1,539,082 612,757
52,102 593,795
8,213,262 7,576,115
(15.861,735) (14.096,559)
(3,381,185) (3.008,881)
(1,438.182) (1,304,246)
(1,759,057) (1,446,548)
(8.002,710) (8,164,131)
(30,442,869) (28,020,365)
2,481,750 (7,999,243)
(673,961) 1,960,468
1,807,789 (6,038,775)
(413,890) 357,137
127,380 1,244,000
85.953 (480.341)
(200,557) 1,120,796
1,607,232 (4,917,979)

nancial statements and reflect adjustments
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016 2016
NOTES TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
Assets RESTATED* 1 JANUARY
Cash and balances with the Bankof 19 48,017,101 50,266,650 62,782,881
Tanzania
Loans and advances to banks 20 57,690,007 51,862,039 33,013,118
Government Investments Held to maturity 21 77,614,959 48,747,840 23,841,200
Loans and advances to customers 22 186,703,462 169,327,030 195,634,151
Available for sale investments 23 3,391,380 3,264,000 2,020,000
Property and equipment 24 7,278.806 191,621 6,993,993
Intangible assets 25 694,351 950,991 881,836
Current tax asset 26 1,210,800 1,151,266 -
Deferred tax asset 27 4,657,214 4,329,489 2,185,844
Other assets 28 2,750,724 1,776,104 2,908,688
Total assets 390,008,803 338,827,030 330,261,711
Liabilities
Deposits from banks 29 38,718,867 51,507,970 19,715,953
Deposits from customers 30 271,369,531 236,379,918 257,481,634
Revolving credit lines 31 14,777,101 14,787,616 14,500,000
Convertible loan stock 32 2,039,781 2,039,781 2,000,000
Current tax liability 26 - - 421,261
Payables and Accruals 33 3,266,209 2,824,364 3,372,269
Group Endowment Scheme 34 1,956,459 1,229,317 822,550
Total liabilities 332,127,948 308,768,966 298,313,667
Ordinary share capital 35 59,629,954 23,637,594 23,637,594
Advance towards Equity 35 - 3,028,000 -
Preference share capital 35 69,444 69,444 69,444
Share premium 36 - 6,745,860 6,745,860
Accumulated losses (8.892,717) (9.812,203) (4,744,649)
Revaluation reserve 37 364,948 367,890 367,890
Defined Benefit Scheme 35 (39,727) 249,996 -
Available for sale reserve 35 959,966 870,800 -
General provision reserve 35 1,693,036 1,503,254 1,773,141
Regulatory reserve 38 4,095,951 3,397,430 4,098,764
Total equity 57,880,855 30,058,065 31,948,044
Total liabilities and equity 390,008,803 338,827,030 330,261,711

The financial statements on pages 21 to 84 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on

2 Emarct Z2/(&  and signed on its RS

Prof. Godius Kahyarara
Board chairman

The accounting policies and notes on pages 25 to\§4 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial
statements.

* Certain amounts shown here do not correspond to the 2016 financial statements and reflect adjustments made, refer to
Note 22 for details.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NOTES
Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit before income tax
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Impairment charges on loans and advances to customers
Amortization of intangible assets 25
Depreciation of property and equipment 24

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in working

capital items

Increase in loans to banks maturing after 3 months

Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to customers

Decrease/(increase) in investments held to maturity maturing after 3 months
Increase in Statutory Minimum Reserve

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

(Decrease)/increase in deposits

Decrease/(increase) in other liabilities

Tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Purchase of property and equipment 24
Purchase of intangible assets 25

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities
Proceeds/(payments) from revolving credit lines
Proceeds from new equity

Proceeds on issue of loan stock

Net cash generated from financing activities

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Movement in cash and cash equivalents during the year:
Net cash flows generated from operating activities

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Net cash flows generated from investing activities

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year 39

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
RESTATED

2,481,750 (7,999,243)
344,180 7,347,963
274,516 9,453
1,484,541 1,437,095
4,584,987 795,268
(816.570) (1,783,430)
(13.759.590) 18,558,231
(9.503,922) (10,694,313)
(13,235,523) (412.899)
380,973 (2,054,313)
22,200,510 9,793,182
(1,339.831) 261,702
(1,363,194) (1,636,524)
(12,852,160) 12,826,904
(1,616.976) (1,643.696)
(12,626) (27,636)
(1,629,602) (1,673,332)
(10,515) 287,616
26,218,500 3,028,000

. 39,781

26,207,985 3,355,397
82,390,173 67,881,204
(12,943,747) 12,826,904
(1,629,602) (1,673,332)
26,207,985 3,355,397
94,116,396 82,390,173

The accounting policies and Notes on pages 25 to 84 form part of, and should be read in conjunction with, these financial

statements.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Azania Bank Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Tanzania under the Companies Act, 2002
and is domiciled in the United Republic of Tanzania. It is licensed to operate as a bank under the Banking and
Financial Institutions Act, 2006 and is regulated by the Bank of Tanzania. The registered office of the bank is:

Mawasiliano Towers, 3™ Floor
Plot No. 20 Sam Nujoma Road
P.O. Box 32089

Dar es Salaam

Tanzania.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
i. Compliance statement

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2002.

ii. Basis of measurement.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for available-for-sale financial
assets which are measured at fair value.

iii. Presentation of financial statements

The presentation of financial position is broadly in order of liquidity. Information regarding recoverability or
settlement after reporting period is disclosed in the notes.

3. FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These financial statements are presented in Tanzania Shillings (TZS), which is the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

4. USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the bank’s
accounting policies. There are areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ended 31 December 2017 is included in the following notes:

¢ Note 22 - impairment of financial assets
s Note 41 - determination of fair value of financial instruments

e Note 27 — recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which tax
losses carried forward can be used;
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

4. USE OF JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

¢ Note 34 — measurement of employment benefit obligation; key actuarial assumptions
¢ Note 44 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions
about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources:

5. NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS
(i) New and amended standards and interpretations

The accounting policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those used in the previous period. The
new and amended standards and interpretations that became effective on and after 1 January 2017 did
not have significant impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Bank.

The nature of each amendment is described below:

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange
gains or losses). Reference is made on the statement of cash flows where there is section showing the
adjustments of the effect of forex on cash and cash equivalents.

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets Jor Unrealized Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable
profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of deductible temporary difference related
to unrealised losses. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should determine
future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may include the recovery of
some assets for more than their carrying amount.

Amendments to [FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of the scope of
disclosure requirements in IFRS 12

The amendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in IFRS 12, apply to an entity’s interest in a
subsidiary, a joint venture or an associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate)
that is classified (or included in a disposal group that is classified) as held for sale.

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have  not been early adopted by the Bank.

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2017 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the Bank. The Bank’s assessment
of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

[FRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement with
effect from I January 2018. IFRS 9 includes requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The impairment requirements
will lead to significant changes in the accounting for financial instruments. The Bank will not restate
comparatives on initial application of IFRS 9 on | January 2018 but will provide detailed transitional
disclosures in accordance with the amended requirements of IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.
Any change in carrying amounts from the initial application of IFRS 9 will be recognised in equity.

Based on analysis performed, the effects of the new classification and measurement requirements under
IFRS 9 will not have a significant impact.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. NEW STANDARDS, AMMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Bank (Continued)

Impairment

IFRS 9 introduces a revised impairment model which requires entities to recognise expected credit losses
based on unbiased forward-looking information. This replaces the existing [AS 39 incurred loss model
which only recognises impairment if there is objective evidence that a loss was already incurred and
measures the loss based on the most probable outcome. The [FRS 9 impairment model will be applicable
to all financial assets at amortised cost, lease receivables, debt financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. This presents a change from
the scope of the IAS 39 impairment model which excludes loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts (these were covered by IAS 37: Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets).

The measurement of expected loss will involve increased complexity and judgment including estimation
of probabilities of default, loss given default, a range of unbiased future economic scenarios, estimation
of expected lives, estimation of exposures at default and assessing increases in credit risk.

Exposures would be divided into 3 stages as follows:

+ Stage 1: Exposures for which a significant increase in credit risk has not occurred since origination. For
these exposures a 12 month expected credit loss will be recognized.

+ Stage 2: Exposures for which a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since origination. The
Bank will assess whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred based on qualitative and
quantitative drivers; as well as exposures that are more than 30 days past due contractual payment date.
Lifetime expected credit losses will be recognized for these assets.

+ Stage 3: Exposures which meet the definition of default. The Bank has aligned its definition of default
with Regulatory Capital CRR Article 178. which considers exposures that are more than 90 days past
due, forbearance, as well as indicators that an exposure is unlikely to pay. Lifetime expected credit
losses will be recognized for these assets.

Per IFRS 9 principles, the gross carrying amount of an exposure is the contractual amount owing from the
counterparty; whereas the amortised cost reflects the expected cash flows discounted using the original
effective interest rate. Hence the expected credit loss provision, which is the difference between the gross
carrying amount and amortised cost, would reflect the expected cash shortfalls discounted by the original
effective interest rate.

Consequently, the expected credit loss provision per [FRS 9 includes contractual interest in respect of stage
3 assets; where previously such interest was excluded from the gross carrying amount presented.

The revised impairment model is expected to have a material financial impact on the existing impairment
provisions previously recognised in terms of the requirements of IAS 39, as well as increase volatility in the
recognition of impairment losses going forward. It is estimated that the increase on IAS 39 impairment
stock (including contractual interest not recognized per the principles above) will be in the region of 50%
to 60% on a pre-tax basis.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. NEW STANDARDS, AMMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have  not been early adopted by the Bank (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

The scope of the new standard includes leases of all assets, with certain exceptions. A lease is defined as
a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

The key features of the new standard are:

¢ The new standard requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model
(subject to certain exemptions) in a similar way to finance leases under IAS 17.

* Lessees recognise a liability to pay rentals with a corresponding asset, and recognise interest expense
and depreciation separately.

e The new standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of *low-value’ assets (e.g.,
personal computer) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).

* Reassessment of certain key considerations (e.g., lease term, variable rents based on an index or rate,
discount rate) by the lessee is required upon certain events.

e Lessor accounting is substantially the same as today’s lessor accounting, using IAS 17’s dual
classification approach.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application
is permitted, but not before an entity applies IFRS 15. The new standard permits a lessee to choose either
a full retrospective or a modified retrospective transition approach. The new standard’s transition
provisions permit certain reliefs. The new standard requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under IAS 17. The impact of the new standard is being assessed by the Bank.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
IFRS 17 applies to all types of insurance contracts (i.e.. life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance),

regardless of the type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments
with discretionary participation features.

The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are, as follows:

® The measurement of the present value of future cash flows, incorporating an explicit risk adjustment,
remeasured every reporting period (the fulfillment cash flows)

¢ A Contractual Service Margin (CSM) that is equal and opposite to any day one gain in the fulfilment
cash flows of a group of contracts, representing the unearned profit of the insurance contracts to be
recognised in profit or loss over the service period (i.e., coverage period)

e Certain changes in the expected present value of future cash flows are adjusted against the CSM and
thereby recognised in profit or loss over the remaining contractual service period

» The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, determined by an accounting policy choice.

» The presentation of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income based on the concept of services provided during the period

* Amounts that the policyholder will always receive, regardless of whether an insured event happens
(non- distinct investment components) are not presented in the income statement, but are recognised
directly on the balance sheet

e [nsurance services results (earned revenue less incurred claims) are presented separately from the
insurance finance income or expense

» Extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognised amounts from insurance contracts and
the nature and extent of risks arising from these contracts
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. NEW STANDARDS, AMMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have  not been early adopted by the Bank (Continued)

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods starting on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also applies IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 on or before
the date it first applies IFRS 17. The bank has not started applying [FRS 17.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

The standard is effective on 1 January 2018. The IASB has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace IAS 18 which covers contracts for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers
construction contracts. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control
of a good or service transfers to a customer — so the notion of control replaces the existing notion of risks
and rewards. A new five-step process must be applied before revenue can be recognised:

e identify contracts with customers

e identify the separate performance obligation

* determine the transaction price of the contract

» allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and
* recognise the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Entities will have a choice of full retrospective application, or prospective application with additional

disclosures. However, the Bank has no significant revenue generating contracts with customers that are
not within the scope IFRS 9 therefore no impact is expected.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

5. NEW STANDARDS, AMMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS (Continued)

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Bank (Continued)

Other standards and interpretations that are yet to be effective:

* [FRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration (Effective |
January 2018)

e [FRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Effective 1 January 2019): The
Company currently has no uncertain tax positions.

The other new and amended standards issued but not yet effective, and not listed above, are not expected
to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

e [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative — Amendments to IAS 7 (Effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017).

¢ IAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses — Amendments to IAS 12 (Effective
for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017).

® IAS 12 Income Taxes - Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments classified as
equity (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.)

* IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalization (Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.)

* IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring investees at fair
value through profit or loss is an investment - by -investment choice. (Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 Jan 2019).

* IAS 40-Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.)

¢ [FRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards - Deletion of short-term
exemptions for first-time adopters. (Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Jan 2018).

¢ [FRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions — Amendments to IFRS
2 (Eftective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018).

¢ IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation. (Effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 Jan 2019).

¢ Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - Amendments to IFRS 4
Transfers of Investment Property — Amendments to IAS 40 (Effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018).

e IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture — Amendments to [FRS 10 and IAS 28 (In December 2015, the IASB decided to defer the
effective date of the amendments until such time as it has finalised any amendments that result from
its research project on the equity method. Early application of the amendments is still permitted).
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

a)

b)

d)

e)

Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised in profit or loss
on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of the financial instrument and allocating the interest income or expense over
the relevant period. In terms of the effective interest rate, is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or where appropriate a
shorter period to net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

Fee and commission income

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided.
Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred and recognised as an
adjustment to the effective interest rate on the loan. Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when
syndication has been completed and the bank has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has
retained a part at the same effective interest rate as the other participants.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the bank’s right to receive the payment is established. Dividends are
presented as other operating income based on the nature of investments currently held.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Tanzanian Shillings using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated with closing
rate as at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are translated with the exchange rate as at the date of initial recognition. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in statement of
profit or loss.

Leases

Leases of assets are classified as operating leases if the lessor effectively retains all the risks and benefits.
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between finance expense and the

reductions of the outstanding liability. The finance expense is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of liability.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid if the bank has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount
as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined Pension contributions plans

The Bank operates a defined contribution plan whereby each of its employees contribute to the state
managed (statutory) funds namely the Parastatal Pensions Fund (PPF), Public Service Pensions Fund
(PSPF), the National Social Security Fund (NSSF) and Local Authority Pensions Fund (LAPF). The Bank
contributes 15% of basic salary for each employee while the employees contribute 5%. Apart from these
monthly contributions, the bank has no further commitments or obligations to these funds. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss in the year to which they relate

Workers Compensation Fund

This is a social security scheme established for compensating workers who suffer occupational injuries or
contract occupational diseases arising out of and in the course of their employment. The Bank is required to
contribute to the fund % of the monthly wage bill. The Bank remits the contributions on month to month
basis and costs recognised in respective months

Defined benefit plans

The Bank has Group endowment plan, a defined benefit plan which provide entitlement for Bank employees
employed before 1 July 2014. Employees with more than 5 years in employment with the Bank are entitled
for a specific percentage of basic salary for completed months of service on retirement age or voluntarily
retiring at age of 55 years or retirement on restructuring and medical grounds.

The Bank’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting
the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Bank, the recognised
asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they occur. The Bank
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Bank
recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan in the period the settlement occurs.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments
e Recognition

The Bank initially recognises loans and advances, deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date on which they are originated. All other financial instruments (including regular-way
purchases and sales of financial assets) are recognised on the trade date, which is the date on which the
Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to their acquisition of issue, except in the case of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

¢  Measurements and classification
The classification of financial instruments at initial recognition depends on their purpose and
characteristics and intention of management on acquiring them.

Financial assets

The Bank classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
* Loans and receivables,

e Held-to-maturity and

»  Available-for-sale financial assets.

(i)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than:

® Those that the bank intends to sell immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for
trading;
* Those that the bank upon initial recognition designates as available-for-sale; or

* Those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment. other than
because of credit deterioration.

Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value — which is the cash consideration to originate
or purchase the loan including any transaction costs — and measured subsequently at amortized cost using
the effective interest method.

The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the profit or loss in ‘Impairment loss expense” Loans and receivables that are included in
the statement of financial position are loans and advances to banks and loans and advances to customers.

(ii)  Held to maturity

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the directors have the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than:

¢ Those that the bank upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

e Those that the bank designates as available-for-sale: and

*  Those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recognized at fair value including direct and incremental
transaction costs and measured subsequently at amortized cost, using the effective interest method. Held
to maturity includes Government and Corporate securities.

)
(PS5 ]
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)  Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates
or equity prices. Available-for-sale financial assets include equity.

Equity investments classified as available-for —sale are those that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, which is the cash consideration
including any transaction costs, and measured subsequently at fair value with gains and losses being
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and cumulated in a separate reserve in equity,
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is derecognised. However, interest is calculated using the
effective interest method, and foreign currency gains and losses on monetary assets classified as available-
for-sale is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Bank’s holding in financial liabilities represents mainly deposits from banks and customers. lines of
credits and other liabilities. Such financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost.

Convertible stock

This is financial instrument the bank is holding a loan which will be converted to equity. The convertible
stock is recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract evidenced to hold and control the residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

e De-recognition

Financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these assets
have ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards have not been
transferred, the Bank tests control to ensure that continuing involvement on the basis of any retained
powers of control does not prevent derecognition). Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have
been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the contractual obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender
on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in profit or loss.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g) Financial instruments (Continued)

e Fair value measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence. the
most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial instruments
is based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed equity securities and
quoted debt instruments on major exchanges and broker quotes from stock market.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange. dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. [f the
above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive. Indicators that a market is inactive
are when there is a wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread or there are few
recent transactions.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. In these
techniques, fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments,
using models to estimate the present value of expected future cash flows or other valuation techniques,
using inputs existing at the reporting dates.

For unlisted debt instruments, the bank uses international developed models for valuation purposes. Some
of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and before estimated based on assumptions.
The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with
certainty, and valuation techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the
bank holds.

Valuations are therefore adjusted, where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risks,
liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk. Based on the established fair value model governance policies,
related controls and procedures applied, the directors believe that these valuation adjustments are
necessary and appropriate to fairly state the values of financial instruments carried at fair value.

* Reclassification of financial assets

The bank may choose to reclassify financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivables
out of the held-for-trading or available-for-sale categories if the management has the intention and ability
to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or until maturity at the date of reclassification.

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or
amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification
date are subsequently made. Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the reclassification date. Further increases
in estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g) Financial instruments (Continued)
e Impairment of financial assets

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;

- it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

- the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

- observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the portfolio, including:

(i) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and

(i) national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the portfolio.

The estimated period between a losses occurring and its identification is determined by the directors for each
identified portfolio. In general, the periods used vary between 3 and 12 months; in exceptional cases, longer
periods are warranted.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the bank may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
g) Financial instruments (Continued)
¢ Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar
credit risk characteristics (that is, on the basis of the bank’s grading process that considers asset type, industry.
geographical location, collateral type, past-due status and other relevant factors). Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’
ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on
the basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
currently exist.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related allowance for loan impairment. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been
determined. Impairment charges relating to loans and advances to banks and customers are classified in loan
impairment charges whilst impairment charges relating to investment securities (held-to-maturity and loans and
receivables categories) are classified in 'Net gains/ (losses) on investment securities'.

[f. in a subsequent period. the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

(ii} Assets classified as available-for-sale

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is objective evidence of impairment resulting in the recognition of an
impairment loss. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss —
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or
loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

e Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when

there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(i) Property and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

* Work in Progress

These are costs of non-financial assets which have not met criteria of being recognized under property and
equipment or intangible assets. The assets are normally under construction, development or at acquisition
process has not finalized to meet the requirements of Accounting standards and Policy.

j) Intangible assets

These are development costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique
software products controlled by the bank. Development costs are recognized as intangible assets when the
following criteria are met:

e it is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

® management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

s there is an ability to use or sell the software product;

® it can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

» adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software
product are available; and

« the expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured

Directly incurred costs are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development
employee costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Costs associated with maintaining software programmes are recognised as an expense when incurred.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives,
which does not exceed five years.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
use the specific software. These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected useful lives.

Software has a maximum expected useful life of 5 years.
Description of items Useful lives

Computer Software 5 Years
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
k) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date. the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets other than the deferred
tax asset and to determine whether there is any indication of impairments. If any such indications exist, then the
assets’ recoverable amount is estimated. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units - CGU).

The impairment test also can be performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell or the value in
use can be determined reliably. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. Value in use is based on estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

I) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that

reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability.

m) Income tax

Current income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of Tanzania Income Tax Act, The directors periodically
evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. They establish provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by

the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

6. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n) Dividend on ordinary share capital and preference share capital

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they
are approved by the Bank's shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared and
no longer at the discretion of the Bank. Dividends for the year that are approved after the reporting date are
disclosed as an event after the reporting date.

0) Ordinary Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as “share capital” in equity. Any premium received over and above the par value of
the shares is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity.

p) Non-Cumulative Preference share capital

This is a class of share capital which is given priority on receiving dividend over ordinary share. Holders of non-
cumulative preference shares are not entitled to carry over the dividend for the year the Bank has not declared to
issue dividend.

q) Regulatory reserve and General provision reserve

The reserve comprises of an amount set aside to cover provision for loan losses required to comply with the
requirements of Bank of Tanzania prudential guidelines. This reserve is not available for distribution. The General
provision reserve is available for the purpose of determination of regulatory total capital of the Bank.

r) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions
and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized in the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee
was given.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability is measured at the higher of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date, and the
unamortized premium.

s) Acceptances and letters of credit

Acceptances and letters of credit are accounted for as off-Statement of Financial Position transactions and
disclosed as contingent liabilities.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
7. INTEREST INCOME RESTATED
Loans to banks 2.859,393 1,727,076
Investment in Government securities 9,099,777 5,730,573
Loans and advances to customers 29,941,748 32,055,445
41,900,918 39,513,094
8. INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits from banks 3,146,289 4,747,569
Deposits from customers 11,611,050 11,620,470
Revolving credit lines 2,088,042 2,045,355
16,845,381 18,413,394
9. IMPAIRMENT CHARGES
Increase in Individually impairment charge 288,702 6,698.315
Increase in portfolio impairment 55478 649.648
Write -offs - 1,306,730
344,180 8,654,693
10. FEES AND COMMISSIONS INCOME
Minimum balance 48,453 54,130
Security perfection 87.258 174,830
Ledger fees 964,314 976.676
Telegraphic transfers 438,163 422,122
Guarantees indemnities 261,662 151,912
Cheque books issuances 33,253 28,962
Letters of credit 153,080 81,411
Western union 13,249 22,274
Salary processing fees 51,036 31,620
Unpaid cheques fees 30,954 37,085
Statement fees 43,479 49,903
Bank/Telecom transactions fee 763,717 836,862
Insurance income 210,412 188,471
Loan Arrangement Fee 1.315.884 888,695
Cash withdrawal commission 1.317.207 1,621,113
Dividend Income 32,017 -
ATM commission 162,665 154,979
Sundry commission & Fees 400,026 320,235
Other fees and commissions’ 295249 328,283
6,622,078 6,369,563

"Includes write back of provision made in previous periods
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
11. FOREIGN EXCHANGE INCOME RESTATED
Foreign exchange income/(loss) 1,674,186 1,113,576
Revaluation income/(loss) (135,104) (500.819)
1,539,082 012,751
12. RECOVERIES FROM BAD DEBTS 52,102 593,795
13. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 10,849,596 9.847.800
Retirement benefit contribution 1,523,774 1,356,911
Skills Development levy 583,911 502,932
Workers compensation Fund 105,324 101,964
Staff medical insurance 558,110 490,677
Leave travel 854,632 849,177
Staff training 189,673 105,081
Staff endowment scheme-Note 34 313,252 442,493
Uniforms 77.300 32,049
Staff relocation 42,961 35,798
Other costs 763,202 331,677
15,861,735 14,096,559

14. PREMISES AND MAINTENANCE COSTS
Office rent 2.444 686 2,107,083
Utility charges 706.146 637,639
Office cleaning 167,005 238,921
Office parking 37,777 25,238
Repair and maintenance 25,571 -
3,381,185 3,008,881
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

15. EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE COSTS

Generators

Motor vehicles

Computer equipment

Other office equipment & furniture

16. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

17. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Auditors” remuneration
Consumables

Burial support

Subscription

Insurance costs

Deposit Insurance Fund
Directors fees

Stationary & Printing
Advertising costs

Security costs

Loans fair value benefits?
Swift expenses
Communication and postage
Travel costs

ATM expenses

Tax consultancy fee

Legal and other professional fees
Business entertainment
Bank charges

Banking license

City service levy

Write offs

Provisions for sundry receivables
Other costs

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
RESTATED

110,181 118,217
163,884 169,762
553,047 371,199
611,070 645,068
1,438,182 1,304,246
1,484,541 1,437,095
274,516 9,453
1,759,057 1,446,548
202,620 93,946
91.461 100.615
16,202 5.500
45,380 51,053
383,070 393,275
419.472 435,082
70,494 53.947
358,717 466,772
385,212 409,769
1,058,463 1,348,504
1.507.482 419,582
19.640 24,384
783.805 869,837
624,545 561,226
560.897 586,747
25,931 13,542
181.700 206,635
56.468 111,051
85,799 64.058
14,540 33,433
34,231 67,216

- 569.906

571,964 542,267
504,617 735,784
8,002,710 8,164,131

* The amount arises as a difference between the interest rate charged to staff loans as compared to

commercial lending rates.

Page | 45



AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016

TZS'000 TZS'000

18. TAX EXPENSE /(CREDIT) RESTATED

[ncome tax charge

-relating to current year 904,509 (116,879)

-relating to prior years - 180,875
Deferred income tax

relating to current year 150,104 (2,024,464)

relating to prior year (380,652) 5

673,961 (1,960,468)

The tax on the Bank’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
basic tax rate as follows:

Profit /(loss) before tax 2,481,750 (7,999,243)

Tax calculated at a tax rate of 30% 744,525 (2,399.773)

Tax effect of:

Depreciation on non- qualifying assets 138,975 55,076

Expenditure permanently disallowed 213,910 2,562,906

Current income tax — prior years - 180,875

Deferred income tax — net (423,449) (2,359.,552)

673,961 (1,960,468)
19. CASH AND BALANCE WITH BANK OF TANZANIA

Cash in hand 26,180,583 17,199,608

Balances with Bank of Tanzania

- Statutory Minimum Reserve (SMR) 17,982,815 31,218.33

- Current account 3,853.703 1,848,704
48,017,101 50,266,650

The Bank is required to maintain a minimum cash reserve on deposits with Bank of Tanzania (Statutory
Minimum Reserve-SMR). The SMR deposit is not available to finance the bank’s day-to-day operations,
thus excluded from cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

20. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO BANKS
[tems in course of collection
Nostro balances
Investments with banks
Provision for impaired placements
Accrued interest receivable

Maturities within 3 months
Maturities after 3 months

2016
2017 TZS'000
TZS'000 RESTATED
3,790,166° 3.806.806
11,199,460 2.687.064
42,331,387 45,088,33
(500,000) -
368,994 279,833
57,690,007 51,862,039
54,690,007 49,678,609
3,000,000 2,183,430
57,690,007 51,862,039

Placements with other banks are not secured and earn interest on normal market interest rates. As at 31
December 2017, placements with other banks earned an average of 9.17% for local currency and 4.4%
for USD placements (2016: 12% and 3.9%) Other items do not earn interest when are held at the

correspondent banks.

21. GOVERNMENT SECURITIES HELD TO MATURITY
Treasury bills
Treasury Bonds
Unearned discount
Interest receivable

Maturities
Treasury bills and bonds maturing within 3 months
Treasury bills and bonds maturing after 3 months

45,306,827 34,792,462
30,027,100 10,740,000
(1,685,059) (458,948)
3.966,091 3.674.326
77,614,959 48,747,840
22,653,841 3,290,644
54,961,118 45,457,196
77,614,959 48,747,840

* This balance contains amount in suspense to settle or receive proceed on business arrangements in places.
Businesses under these accounts are Money transfers where the bank acts as an agent,
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
RESTATED
22. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Individual loans

- Overdrafts 10,222,939 11,838,553
- Personal loans 10,004,556 12,041,970
- Consumer loans 65,250,432 53,330,088
- Mortgage 29,594,048 29,517,071
115,071,975 106,727,682

Corporate / SMEs
- Overdrafts 24,376,639 20,060,816
- Term loans 39,926,651 38,400,315
64,303,290 58,461,131
Staff loans 13.661.,350 12,080,947
Interest receivable 10,956,124 5,297,693
Interest in suspense (6,719,397) (3,014,723)
17,898,077 14,363,917
Total loans and advances 197,273,342 179,552,730
Less: Allowances for impairment on loans and advances (10,569,880) (10,225.700)
Net loans and advances 186,703,462 169,327,030

Restatement of financial statements

The Bank has restated its financial statements for the year ended 3 1* December 2016 in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors. The restatement arose following identification and rectification of an error in the books of accounts
for the year 2016.

The said error developed following generation of interest income on loans which were liquidated before
respective maturity period (pre- liquidated). These loans were earlier booked under The Rule 78 in the
core banking system and after liquidation they continued generating interest income, as a result interest
receivable was overstated by TZS 4,366,839,594 whereas interest income was overstated by TZS
3,961,021,304 and interest in suspense was overstated by TZS 405.818,290. The accumulated loss was
understated by TZS 2,772,714,913 whereas the Bank paid corporate income tax amount of TZS
1,188.306,391.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

22,

23.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

Specific Portfolio Total
impairment impairment impairment
TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
2017
As at January 9,602,879 622,821 10,225,700
Impairment charge during the year 288.7003 64.297 (344,180
As at 31 December 9,891,582 687,118 10,569,880
2016
As at January 3,583,975 649,648 4,233,625
Increase during the year 7,374,790 (26,827) 7,347,963
Charge oft /release during the year (1,355.886) - (1,355.886)
As at 31 December 9,602,879 622,821 10,225,700
AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS
2017 2016
TMRC Investment 3,371,380 3,244,000
Umoja Switch 20,000 20,000
3,391,380 3,264,000

Tanzania Mortgage Refinance Company (TMRC) is a specialized financial institution that provides long
term funding to financial institutions for the purposes of mortgage lending. TMRC has the objective of
supporting financial institutions to do mortgage lending by refinancing the primary mortgage lenders’
(PMLs) mortgage portfolio. Azania Bank Limited. one of the founding member, subscribed and injected

TZS 2,000 million.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

28.

29.

30.

31.

32,

2017 2016

TZS'000 TZS'000

OTHER ASSETS RESTATED
Sundry receivable 1,505,110 324.835
Prepaid expenses 1,669,115 1,451,269
Collection account 94,044 -
Interbank Accounts (16,767) -
Provision for sundry receivable (500,779) -
2,750,723 1,776,104

Sundry receivable is made of claims the Bank is expecting to receive proceeds in the course of business as
well deposits the bank puts forward as it enters in agreement with service providers.

DEPOSITS FROM BANKS

Fixed deposits 38,556,059 51,330,481
Accrued interest 162,808 177,489
38,718,867 51,507,970

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMER
Current accounts 107,491,147 52,153,429
Savings accounts 85,144,614 80,458,816
Term deposits 72,290,468 96,497,201
Other deposits 6,443,302 7,270,472
271,369,531 236,379,918

REVOLVING CREDIT LINES

Tanzania Mortgage Refinancing Company (TMRC) 12,000,000 12,000,000
Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF) 2,500,000 2,500,000
Accrued interest 277,101 287616
14,777,101 14,787,616

The Bank is holding deposits in form of revolving credit lines from TMRC amounting to TZS 12 billion
at 11.5% per annum; the purpose of the facility is to finance residential mortgages and TZS 2.5 billion
from GEPF at 14.5% and 15.75%.

CONVERTIBLE LOAN STOCK

Government Employees Pension Fund 2,000,000 2.000,000
Accrued interest 39,781 39,781
2,039,781 2,039,781

The loan stock was issued for the purpose of raising finance to develop the operation of Azania Bank
Limited and can be converted into shares at nominal value. The Bank secured a loan stock from
Government Employees Fund on 19 November 2014 for the period of five years at a rate of 16.75% per
annum. The loan is subordinated and the lender has an option to convert the loan into ordinary shares on
maturity.

2017
TZS'000

2016
TZS'000
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

33.

34.

RESTATED
PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
Accrued expenses 679,001 602,203
Other liabilities 2,587,208 2,222,161
3,266,209 2,824,364
GROUP STAFF ENDOWMENT SCHEME 1,956,459 1,229,317

During the year 2017, the Group Staff endowment benefits were adjusted based on the actuarial valuation
to reflect the liability to the bank for the period under review. As a result of the actuarial valuation, the
defined benefit obligation increased by TZS 1,956 million (2016: TZS 1,229 million). The corresponding
past service credit was recognised in the profit and loss for year 2017.

Movement in the Defined Group Staff benefit obligation

2017 2016

TZS'000 TZS'000

RESTATED

Balance as at | January 1,229.317 1,673,969

Included in profit and loss;

- Current service -cost 120,157 186,011

- Interest cost 193,095 256,482

Total charge to profit and loss 313,252 442,493
Included in other comprehensive income

- Loss arising in actuarial valuation 413,890 (357:137)

Payments during the year - (530,008)

Balance as at 31 December 1,956,459 1,229,317

Below are the key assumptions used:

e Discount rate: 1AS 19 requires the discount rate to be based on the yields available on high quality
corporate bonds of appropriate currency and term. The corporate bond market in Tanzania is relatively
limited and illiquid. Therefore, the discount rate was based on the yields available on long-term
government bonds. The discount rate used for 2017 is 16% p.a (2016: 15%).

® Salary: The salary increment is assumed to be in line with long term inflation. The Bank has budgeted a
5% p.a. (2016: 2%) increase in salaries for the year. The government's long term inflation is 5% p.a.

® Retirement age: The Bank has used a compulsory retirement age of 60 years.

® Other demographic assumptions: The Bank has not made an allowance for retirements or exits before age
of 60 years. Members who die before retirement are covered under a separate life assurance policy.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
35. SHARE CAPITAL RESTATED
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
100,000,000 ordinary shares @ 1,000 100,000,000 100,000,000
15.000.000 Convertible loan stock @
1.000 15,000,000 15,000,000
1,000,000 Non-cumulative Irredeemable preference shares
@ 1,000 1.000,000 1,000,000
116,000,000 116,000,000
ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL
59,629,954 ordinary shares @ 1.000 59,629,9544 23,637,594
69,444 Non-cumulative irredeemable shares @ 1,000 69.444 69,444
Advance towards Equity - 3,028,000
59,699,398 26,735,038

Movement of share capital, defined benefit scheme and other reserves have been presented under

Statement of Changes in Equity on page 23.

36. SHARE PREMIUM

On shares issued - 6,745,860
- 6,745,860
The share premium arose in 2013 on issue of 10,798.235 shares.
37. REVALUATION RESERVE
As at | January 367.890 367.890
Realized gain on disposal of revalued assets (2,942) -
364,948 367,890

# During the year the Bank received fresh capital of TZS 26.219 million (2016: TZS 3.028 million). All
receipts (for year 2017 and 2016) were registered as ordinary share capital. Furthermore, the share
premiums of TZS 6,745 million which were allocated in year 2013 were registered as ordinary share
capital in year 2017.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

38. REGULATORY RESERVE

Specific General Total

TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
As at 1 January 2017 3.397.430 1,503,254 4.900.684
Appropriation from /(to) retained earnings 698,521 189,782 888,303
As at 31 December 2017 4,095,951 1,693,036 5,788,987
As at | January 2016 4,098,764 1,773,141 5,871,905
Appropriation from /(to) retained earnings (701,334) (209,R87) (971,221)
As at 31 December 2016 3,397,430 1,503,254 4,900,684

Regulatory reserve represents an Amount set aside to cover additional provisions for loan losses required to
comply with the requirements of Bank of Tanzania’s prudential guidelines. This amount is not available for
distribution and not part of the Bank’s core capital.

2017 2016

39. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT TZS '000 TZS '000
RESTATED

Cash balances 25,962.159 17,104,820
Foreign exchange gain/(loss) 218.424 94,788
Balances with Bank of Tanzania 3,853,703 1,848,704
Balances with other banks (maturities of 3 months or less) 41,428,268 49,678,609
Treasury bills maturing less than 3 months 22,653.841 13,663,252
94,116,396 82,390,173

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Bank’s objectives on managing capital go beyond the concept of equity. These objectives are:

* To comply with the capital requirements set by the Regulator of the banking industry in which the Bank
operates;

* To safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

» To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

40. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by the Bank’s management, while
employing techniques based on the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee, as implemented by the
Bank of Tanzania (BOT), for supervisory purposes. The required information is filed with the BoT on a
quarterly basis.

The BOT requires each bank or banking group to:
(a) Hold the minimum level of the regulatory capital of TZS 15,000 million, and

(b) Maintain a ratio of core capital to the risk-weighted asset (the ‘Basel ratio’) and total capital to risk
weighted assets at or above 10% as 12% respectively.

The Bank’s regulatory capital as managed by its Treasury and capital market department is divided into two
tiers:

e Tier 1 capital: share capital, retained earnings and reserves created by appropriations of retained earnings,
other than reserves established to cushion the anticipated loss resulted from non-performing loans. Prepaid
expenses, intangible assets and deferred charges are deducted in arriving at Tier | capital; and

® Tier 2 capital: qualifying subordinated loan capital and unrealised gains arising on the fair valuation of
equity instruments held as available for sale.

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on
shareholders’ return is also recognized in addition to recognizing the need to maintain a balance between the

higher returns and that may be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by
sound capital position

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the ratios of the bank for the year

ended 31 December 2017 and year ended 31 December 2016. During the year under review, the Bank
complied with the capital adequacy ratio, and the single borrowers limit.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

40. CAPITAL ADEQUACY

2017 2016 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000 TZS'000
RESTATED 1 JANUARY
Ordinary share capital 39,629,954 23,637,594 23,707,038

Preference share capital 69.444 69.444
Advance towards capital - 3.028,000 3,028.000
Share premium - 6.745,860 6.745.860
Accumulated losses (8.892.717) (9,812,203) (8.155.383)
50,806,681 23,668,695 25,325,515

Less

Prepayments (1.669.113) (1.451.269) (1.451.269)
Intangible assets (694.351) (950,991) (950,991)
Deferred charges (4.657.214) (4,201,278) (4,.201.278)
Total core capital 43,786,001 17,065,157 18,721,977
Subordinated debts 2.039.781 2,039,781 2.039.781
General provisions 1.693.036 1.503.254 1,503.254
Tier 2 capital 3,732,817 3,543,035 3,543,035
Total capital 47,518,818 20,608,192 24,166,994
Total risk weighted assets 226,469,994 206,981,521 206,981,521
Core capital ratio 19.33% 8.24% 9.96%
Total capital ratio 20.98% 9.96% 11.68%

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The shareholders of the Bank are disclosed in the directors’ report. A number of banking transactions such
as loans and deposits are entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. The volumes of
related party transactions and outstanding balances at the year-end are as follows:



AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) Deposit liabilities from related parties

2017 2016
TZS'000 TZS'000
RESTATED
National Social Security Fund (NSSF) 50,125,562 11,636,309
Parastatal Pension Fund (PPF) 3.911.918 6.851,352
54,037,480 18,487,661
(b) Loans from related parties
Government Employees Pension Fund (GEPF) 2,000,000 2,000,000
2,000,000 2,000,000
(c¢) Loans to key management personnel
As at 1 January 549,684 265,723
New loans issued during the year 906,924 496,212
Repayments during the year (256,510) (212,251)
1,200,098 549,684
(d)Key management personnel compensation
Salaries and other short-term benefits 1,328.456 1,107,047
Directors' fees 70,494 53,947
1,398,950 1,160,994

Key management personnel are described as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing, and controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly including any director of the Bank.
All related party transactions were at arm’s length and in a normal course of business, and on terms and
conditions similar to those applicable to other customers except for staff loans where the rate of interest
was 8% for all staff loans until December 2017 where the interest rate was revised downward to 5%.

Exception is on Education loans which are interest free.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Valuation methodolog

The Bank establishes fair value for held to maturity financial assets using valuation technique that
takes into account discount and interest earned at the reporting date. The current market information
is available on the Bank of Tanzania website for market interest rates on loans and advances, deposits
and borrowings.

The Bank establishes fair value of available for sale financial assets based on the share prices of
unquoted equity shares available from the issuer of the equity instrument at the reporting date. Fair
values of held for trading financial assets are established based on prices/market information of such
instrument available on Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange website at the reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy

IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation
techniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from
independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Bank's market assumptions. These two types of
inputs have created the following fair value hierarchy:

* Level | — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. This level includes listed equity securities and debt
instruments on exchanges;

* Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices, interest and vield curves) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices Central Bank Auction prices for Government securities); and

eLevel 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs to valuation techniques).

The tables below show the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments not measured at fair value.
The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value are a
reasonable approximation of fair values because of the short term nature of the financial assets and
financial liabilities or they re-priced in the short run.

Page | 61



79 | aBeq

86€'880°01€ - 86£°880°01¢€ . 86£°880°01¢ 86£'880°01¢ - - sanIiqel| [euruy [B10],
& = - - - - = = senl[Iqel Layio
- - - - - - - - UO1JI3[0D JO ISINOI Y} UI SW)|
1€$°69€°1LT - [£S°69€°1LT - [€S°69€°1LT 1£S°69€°1LT = - sIawoisnd woyy susoda(y
L98'SIL8E - L9'SIL'SE 2 L98°81L°8¢ L98°81L°8¢ - - syueq 1a110 woljy susodacy
SaLIIqel] [eroueuL{
808°66£°STE 5 808°66€'STE = 808°66€°STE LO0'069°LS T9P°E0L 981 6£€900°18 $19ssE [eldueuly [BJO],
T9Y°€0L'981 - 29" €0L981 - 9" €0L°981 < TP E0L 981 = (19u) siawI01SN 01 SAIURAPE PUE SUBO']
G rac - e B soe } } T Aunjew
656 7I19°LL 656 TI19°LL 656 V19°LL 656 19°LL 01 P[oH SIUSWISIAU] JUALULIIAOK)
08€°16€£°¢ 08€°16¢£°¢ 08€°16£°¢ 08€°16€°€ SIUDUINSIAUL 2BS 10} J[qB[IBAY
L00069°LS - LO0'069°LS - LO0'069°LS LO0'069°LS - - SHUBQ J2410 [PIM SjUaWIR| ]
) ) i i i ) ) . BlUBZUR ],
JO Yuegl yum sasuejeq pue yse)
S]1aSSE [BIDURUIL]
L10T 42quada( 1€V

000, SZL 000, SZL 000.SZL 000, SZL 000, SZ.L 000, SZL 000, SZL 000, SZ.L

junowe 1502
2Jo | € 19497 T 19497 I [9A27] Suidiaed pasniowe S3|quA1ad Aanjew
_ : ¥ pue suro’] 0} PIPH
[e10], 1RYI0

(panunuo)) saniIqel| pue s}ISSe [BIDUBUL) JO INJEA 218 [T
(QINNLINOD) SINIWAANSVAW ANTVA HIVA Tk

LIOTHAIINADAA 1€ AAANT YVAA THL MO
(AANNLINOD) SINAWALV.LS TVIONVNIA AHL OL STLON

JHALIAI'T MNVE VINVZV



€9 | 95eq

F0S'SLY TOE - P0S'SLY TOE - POS'SLY°TOE SaNIIqe] [eldURUL [B)O],
- = = - & S[BNIDDY PUE SI[qBAR]
919°L8L V1 - 919°L8L Y1 - 919°L8L VI NPaI) JO aul] FUIAJOARY
816°6LE9ET - 816°6LE£9€ET - 816°6LE9€T slawoisna wioyy sysodaqy
0L6°L0S°1S - 0L6°LOS1S - 0L6°LOS°IS syueq a0 woly spsoda(
santjiqel| [eroueul
9€8° 109°€LT LS6°LTL 691 6L8°ELS €01 - 9€8°109°€LT §19SSE [BlUBUY B0,
000 +9T°¢ 000+9T°€ 000'+9T°¢ SJUSWISIAUL J[EBS 10] J[qR[IBAY
LS6°LTL 691 LS6°LTL 691 - - LS6°LTL 691 (3ou) S19WOISNI 0] SIIUBAPE pUE SULO']
0v8°LYL'8Y = 0v8°LyL 8Y - 0v8°LYL 8T Ajimeu 0} pjay sALNIIG JUSWILIIAOD
6£0°T98°16 - 6£0°798°1¢S - 6£0°T98°1¢S SYUBQ JOWO (PIM SJUIWADE| ]
- - - - - PIURZUR ] JO jUBg YlIm SIdUB[RQ pUR SB)
S19SSE [RIOURUL ]
9107 19qudA( €IV
000, SZ.L 000, SZL 000,SZL 000, SZ.L 000. SZ.L
[e10], € [9A97] T [2A97] I [°2A97] junowe m—-_%._‘:wu €10 ],

(panunuod) SaN[IqRI] puk S)ISSE [BIDUBULJ JO anjea d1e] ['7p
(AANNLLNOD) SINAIWTANSVAIN ANTVA HIVA "TF

LIOT HHAINHDHA 1€ AYUNT dVIA HHL HOA
(QANNIINOD) SINIWALY.LS TVIONVNIA AHL OL SEILON

TALINTTIINVL VINVZY



AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit risk, liquidity risk, market
and operational risks. The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the bank’s risk management frame work. The Board is ultimately responsible for all risks
taken by the Bank. Furthermore, the Board puts in place written policies covering specific areas, such
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-
derivative financial instruments. In addition, internal audit is responsible for the independent review
of risk management and the control environment.

The most important risks include;
o Credit risk,
e Market risk
o Liquidity risk and
® Operational risk.
These risks are explained in the following paragraphs.

43.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of suffering financial loss, should any of the Bank’s customers, clients or market
counterparties fail to fulfill their contractual obligations to the Bank. Credit risk arises mainly from
commercial and consumer loans and advances, credit cards. and loan commitments arising from such
lending activities, but can also arise from credit enhancement provided, financial guarantees, letters of
credit, endorsements and acceptances.

Credit risk is the single largest risk for the Bank’s business; the directors therefore carefully manage
the exposure to credit risk. Having clear understanding of the credit risk the Bank manages at
management level by having subcommittee responsible to manage loan portfolio of the Bank.
Furthermore, the Board of Directors has specific committee for overseeing all credit process.

43.1.1 Credit risk measurement
The Bank assesses the probability of default of customer or counterparty using internal rating scale
tailored to the various categories of counter party. The rating scale has been developed internally and
combines data analysis with credit officer judgment and is validated, where appropriate, by

comparison with externally available information. Customers of the Bank are segmented into five
rating classes

The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating tools
tailored to the various categories of counterparty. They have been developed internally and combine
statistical analysis with credit officer judgment. They are validated, where appropriate, by comparison
with externally available data. The Bank's rating method comprises 5 rating levels for loans.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
43.1 Credit risk (Continued)
43.1.2 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Bank manages limits and controls concentrations of credit risk wherever they are identified and
in particular, to individual counter parties and groups, and to industries. The Bank structures the
levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one
borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such risks are monitored on a revolving
basis and subject to an annual or more frequent review, when considered necessary. Limits on the
level of credit risk by product and industry sector are approved quarterly by the Board of Directors.

The exposure to any one borrower including Banks is further restricted by sub-limits covering on-
and off-Statement of Financial Position exposures and daily delivery risk limits in relation to trading
items. Actual exposures against limits are monitored daily. Exposure to credit risk is also managed
through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate.

Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.

(a) Collateral
The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of mortgage interest
over property, other registered securities over assets and guarantees. The amount and type of
collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty. The main types
of collateral are as follows:

* Mortgages over properties;

e Charges over business assets such as premises inventory and accounts receivables: and

e Guarantees by directors and related companies.

(b) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as
required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit carry the same credit risk as loans. Documentary
and commercial letters of credit — which are written undertakings by the bank on behalf of a customer
authorising a third party to draw drafts on the bank up to a stipulated amount under specific terms
and conditions — are collateralised by the underlying shipments of goods to which they relate and
therefore carry less risk than a direct loan.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of authorisations to extend credit in the
form of loans, guarantees or letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
credit, the bank is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused commitments.
However, the likely amount of loss is less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments
to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific credit standards. The Bank
monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because longer-term commitments generally
have a greater degree of credit risk than shorter-term commitments.

43.1.3 Impairment and provisioning policies

The Bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in its loans and advances portfolio. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures. The second component is in respect of
losses that have been incurred but have not been identified in relation to the loans and advances
portfolio that is not specifically impaired.
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43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
43.1 Credit risk (Continued)

The impairment allowance recognised in the statement of financial position at year-end is driven
from each of the five internal rating grades. However, the impairment allowance is composed largely
of the bottom two grades which are doubtful and loss.

The Bank’s policy requires the review of individual financial assets regularly when individual
circumstances require. Impairment allowances on individually assessed accounts are determined by
an evaluation of the impairment at reporting date on a case-by-case basis, and are applied to all
individually significant accounts. The assessment normally encompasses collateral held (including
re-confirmation of its enforceability) and the anticipated receipts for that individual account.

The table below shows the percentage of the bank’s loans and advances and the associated
impairment allowance for each of the bank’s internal rating categories.

31-Dec-17 31-Dec-16
Credit risk Impairment Credit risk Impairment
Bank's rating exposure allowance exposure allowance
(%) (%)
1. Current 82.22% 0.00% 8§1.92 0%
2. Special monitoring 5.06% 0.34% 495 0.34%
3. Sub-standard 4.29% 1.83% 5.54 2.17%
4. Doubtful 3.93% 1.31% 2.85 0.90%
5. Loss 4.5% 1.88% 4.74 2.15%
100% 5.36% 100 5.56%

The directors are confident to have the ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure
of credit risk to the Bank resulting from both its loan and advances portfolio and debt securities in
the foreseeable future. Basing on the available credit risk grading criteria, actual results as at 31st
December 2017 were as follows:

¢ 87.29% of the loans and advances portfolio was categorised in the top two grades of the internal
rating system (2016: 86.90); and

® 82.22% of the loans and advances to customers are considered to be performing which are neither
past due nor impaired (2016: 81.92%).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
43.1 Credit risk (Continued)

The tables below summarise the loans and advances grading and the respective provision.

2017 2016

Loan and Loan and Loan and Loan and

Advances to Advances Advances to Advances

Customers to Banks Customers to Banks

Digither past due sor 163342268  57.690,007 146,364,347 51,862,039
impaired

Past due but not impaired 8,851,945 - 9,085,514 -

Impaired 25,079,129 . 24,102,869 -

Gross loans and 197,273,342 57,690,007 179,552,730 51,862,039
advances

bee Il vneCns (10,569,880) (500.00) (10.225.700) .

impairment

Net loans and advances 186,703,462 57,190,007 169,327,030 51,862,039

Portfolio allowance 678.298 - 622,821 -

Individually impaired 9,891,582 (500,00) 9,602,879 -

Totabullowince 10,569,880 (500,00) 10,225,700 -
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

43.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(a) Geographical sectors

The following table breaks down the Bank’s main credit exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by
geographical region as of 31 December 2017. For this table, the Bank has allocated exposures to regions based
on the country of domicile of its counter parties.

Amounts due from banks
Held to Maturity Investments

Loans and advances to customers:

Loans to individuals - Overdrafts
Loans to individuals - Term loans
Loans to corporate - Overdraft
Loans to corporate - Term loans
Available for Sale Investments
Other assets*

As at 31 December 2017

Tanzania Europe America Others Total
TZS 000 Tof}ﬁ TZS000  TZS000  TZS ‘000
54.113.708 936.425  2.621.887 17.987 57.690.007
77,614,959 ] } - 77.614.959
10.222.939 ] ] 10222939
118.510.386 ] ) - 118.510.386
24.376.639 ] ) - 24376.639
39.926.651 _ ) - 39.926.651
3.391.380 3.391.380
15.829.949 _ ] - 15.829.949
344,748,557 936,425 2,621,887 17.987 348,324,856

*Other assets includes non-financial instruments
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

43.1 Credit risk (Continued)

(a) Geographical sectors (Continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

31 December 2016

Tanzania Europe America Others Total

TZS 000 TZS 000 TZS 000 TZS 000 TZS <000
Amounts due from banks 54,525,081 1,597,176 142.606 - 50,264,863
Held to Maturity Investments 48,747.840 - - - 48.,747.840
Loans and advances to customers: - - - -
Loans to individuals - Overdrafts 11,838.553 - - - 11,838,553
Loans to individuals- Term loans 94,889,129 - - - 94,889,129
Loans toqcorporate entities- 20.060.816 i ) ) 20.060.816
Overdraft
IL(,)C::;S to corporate entities- Term 38.400315 i ) ) 38.400.315
Available for Sale Investments 3,264,000 = - - 3,264,000
Other assets 15,359.471 - - - 15,359,471

As at 31 December 2016

281,085,205 1,597,176 142,606 282,824,987
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
43.2 Market risk

Market risk is the risk where the changes in market prices - e.g. interest rates, equity prices, foreign
exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s credit standing) —
will affect the Bank’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risks arise
from open positions in interest rate and currency, all of which are exposed to general and specific
market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market rates. The objective of the bank’s
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters
to ensure the bank’s solvency while optimising the return on risk. The Bank separates exposures to
market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios. The market risks arising from trading and
non-trading activities are monitory regularly in the bank’s treasury and capital market department. The
Bank has Assets and Liabilities Management Committees that is entrusted with mandate to manage
market risk with at least quarterly t reports being submitted to the Board of Directors for deliberation
and guidance.

43.2.1 Foreign exchange risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency exchange
rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Board sets limits on the level of exposure by currency
and in aggregate for both overnight and intra-day positions, which are monitored daily. The table
below summarises the Bank’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December 2017.
Included in the table are the Bank’s financial instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

43 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

43.2 Market risk (Contin ued)
43.2.1 Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank had significant exposures on United St

ates dollars and Euro.

2017 2016

TZS <000 TZS 000

DESCRIPTION USD EUR USD EUR
Exchange rate at 31 December 2,241 2.676 2.183 2,282
Assets 24,098 1,096 24,253 1.852
Liabilities 24,777 1,144 24,619 1,800
Net balance sheet position (679) (48) (366) 52
Rate depreciated by 10% 224 268 218 228
Profit/(Loss )-TZS (152,253) (12,971) (79.991) 11,880
Rate appreciated by 10% (224) (268) (218) (228)
Profit/(Loss )-TZS 152,253 12,971 79.991 (11.880)

It Tanzanian Shillings had weakened/strengthened by

10% against United States dollar with all

variables held constant, the pre-tax profit would have been higher/lower by TZS 152 million (2016:

loss of TZS 80 million).

If Tanzanian Shillings had weakened/strengthened by 10% against EURO, with all variables held
constant, the pre-tax profit would have been lower/higher by TZS 13 million (2016: profit higher/lower

by TZS 12 million).

43.2.2 Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Bank takes on
exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its fair
value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch
of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored daily by bank.

The table below summarises the Bank’s exposure to interest rate risks. It includes the Bank’

s financial

instruments at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

The bank does not bear any interest rate risk on off Statement of Financial Position items.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
43.2 Market risk (continued)

43.2.2 Interest rate risk (continued)

e Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that
portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, if there was an increase
of interest rates by 2% the bank’s profitability would be reduced by TZS 623 million (2016: TZS 40
million) due to increase in annual interest expenses. The impact of this increase on capital of the bank
1s reduction by TZS 436 million (2016: TZS 28 million). However, with the core capital of TZS 43,786
million (see note 40) the amounts are not expected to significantly impair the ability of the Bank to
operate profitably.

2017 2016

TZS000 TZ5000

Assets re-pricing after 6 months 80.286.350 81.259.447
Liabilities re-pricing after 6 months 142,571,209 85.251,089
Interest rate Gap (62,284,859) (3,991,642)
Impact of interest rate rise by additional 2% (622.849) (39.916)
Impact in Capital (435,994) (27.941)

43.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk’ is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

43.3.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Bank’s liquidity management process, as carried out within the Bank and monitored by a separate
Treasury and Capital Market team. includes:

* Day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements can be
met. These include replenishment of funds as they mature or are borrowed by customers. The Bank

maintains an active presence in money markets to enable this to happen;

» Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection
against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow:

* Monitoring liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory requirements; and

¢ Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.
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AZANIA BANK LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Loan commitment, guarantees and other facilities

At31 December 2017, the bank had the contractual amount of the off Statement of Financial Position financial

instruments that commit it to extend credit to customers, guarantees and letters of credit as follows:

No later than Over 5

1 year 1-5 years years Total
As at 31 December 2017 TZS 000 TZS 000 TZS 000 TZS 000
Loan commitments 6,108.993 - - 6,108,993
Letters of credit and guarantees 9,001,502 - - 9,001,502
Total 15,110,495 - - 15,110,495
As at 31 December 2016
Loan commitments 6,440,367 - - 6,440,367
Letters of credit and guarantees 5,593,344 - - 5,593,344
Total 12,033,711 - - 12,033,711

b) Legal claims contingency

As at 31 December 2017, the Bank was a defendant in several law suits. The plaintiffs are claiming damages
and interest thereon for the alleged loss caused by the Bank due to breach of contracts and loss of business.
The Directors are of the opinion that no significant liabilities will arise from these claims.

¢) Operating lease commitments

The Bank is the lessee. the future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

as follows:

No later than one year
Later than one year and no later than five years
Later than five years

d) Capital commitments

The Bank has capital expenditure approved but not contracted for

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

2017 2016

TZS 000 TZS'000

2,166,158 2,431,833

5,109,954 9,726,532

974,543 9,726,532

8,250,655 14,838,305
2017 2016
TZS <000 TZS 000
2.150.000 1.360.000

In the opinion of the Directors, there were no events after 31 December 2017 which requires an adjustment in
the financial statements apart from placements made to banks whose licenses were revoked by the Bank of
Tanzania (2016: Restated financial statements due to an error on the interest income).

46. COMPARATIVES

Except when a standard or an interpretation permits or requires otherwise, all amounts are reported or disclosed

with comparative information.
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